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RFP NO.15-2757V
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TITLE: Pre-Paid Debit Cards Services
ADDENDUM NO. 4
To All Offerors:

Attached are written questions received in response to this RFP.  These questions, along with the State's response, become an official amendment to this RFP.

All other terms of the subject "Request for Proposal" are to remain as previously stated.

Acknowledgment of Addendum:

The Offeror for this solicitation must acknowledge receipt of this addendum.  This page must be submitted at the time set for the RFP opening or the response may be disqualified from further consideration.

I acknowledge receipt of Addendum No. 4.

Signed: ___________________________________

Company Name: ____________________________

Date: ______________________

Sincerely,
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Rick Dorvall

Contracts Officer

	Question Number
	Page Number
	Section Number
	Questions & Answers for RFP #15-2757V  

	1. 
	12
	3.1
	Offeror shall describe how they comply with the requirements as stated in this section.

	2. 
	27
	6.2
	Evaluation Criteria #33  Product Demonstration Total 100 points but will be scored broken down the following way:
1. Ease of Use                                                                             25

2. On-Line Reporting                                                                  25

3. Activating Cards                                                                     25

4. On-Line  Account Management                                             25

	3. 
	12
	3
	Q. Please provide the standard payment frequency for each program expected to participate (one-time only, weekly, bi-weekly, monthly)

A. UI – Weekly benefit payments per individual. Funding batches occur daily. MSF bi-weekly.
DOC- Total # check payments issued - 1500 monthly Total $ amount associated - $147,000 monthly Estimated distinct payee count - 1290 Frequency of Pay- Restitution payments occur at the end of each business day.  Gate Pay payments to inmates occur upon release, there is an average of 54 releases each month occurring at different dates throughout each month

	4. 
	12
	3
	Q. Please provide the average payment amount for each program expected to participate in the program.

A. UI – YR2014 - $297.00 average individual weekly benefit. MSF average $1,046.
DOC- $100 average payment for each restitution recipient and inmate receiving gate pay.

	5. 
	12
	3
	Q. For the last 12 months, please provide the number of payments made per month for each program expected to participate, via check, ACH, or other payment method.

A.MSF-

Month
 # of Pmts
Nov 2013
2870
Dec 2013
3180
Jan 2014
3156
Feb 2014
2932
Mar 2014
2933
Apr 2014
3198
May 2014
3149
June 2014
2877
July 2014
3060
Aug 2014
2892
Sept 2014
2719
Oct 2014
3268
A. UI- Two year average payments is 434,406 annually with 155,121 completed by warrant and 279,285 by EFT.  Over the last 12 months however the warrant average per month is 12,926.
A. DOC

Month
# of Pmts
Nov 2013
579
Dec 2013
2440
Jan 2014
1113
Feb 2014
1158
Mar 2014
1214
Apr 2014
2596
May 2014
1240
June 2014
4728
July 2014
1262
Aug 2014
1250
Sept 2014
2188
Oct 2014
1265


	6. 
	12
	3
	Q. Do all employers in the State pay into the Montana State Fund or only employers that do not have a workers’ compensation policy through a private insurer?

A. No.  Not all use State Fund.

	7. 
	12
	3
	Q. Does the State anticipate the participating agencies to continue offering check as a payment option to payees or will all payments be made electronically (ACH or prepaid) once prepaid is available?

A. Yes.  Checks will still be offered.

	8. 
	12
	3
	Q. Do the agencies expected to participate in this program use the same bank for ACH and check services today?  Which bank(s)?

A. Yes. US Bank.

	9. 
	15
	3.9
	Q. Will the State clarify whether offers can include inactivity fees?  Section 3.9 b requests an account maintenance process that provides for no charges or fees associated with the level of cardholder account activity, Section 3.19 c requests the offeror to inform the state of accounts that have accrued inactivity fees via a report in 3.16.

A.   We prefer no inactivity fees. If fees must be included then there should be 1st year waiver from date of issue.

	10. 
	16
	3.12
	Q. Will the State further describe the intent of this requirement around options for banking unused no-charge ATM withdrawal rights?

A. The State agrees to remove this section 3.12c of the RFP.  Not applicable.

	11. 
	25
	5.4.1
	Q. Will the State allow offerors to submit separate cost proposals for single load and reloadable card programs?

A.  Multiple cost proposals can be submitted, however, reloadable will be the only cost evaluated and scored in this RFP.

	12. 
	25
	5.4.1
	Q. Will the State please confirm that the ATM Withdrawal category in this section represents ‘out-of-network’ use only?

A. Offeror should include any charges whether they are in-network or out-of-network.  Offeror should identify if the charge is for in-network or out-of-network in their explanation.  There should not be surcharges or service charges for in-network withdrawals.

	13. 
	26
	6.1
	Q. Are proposals evaluated by the Department of Administration or will representatives from the participating agencies be included in the evaluation committee? 

A. Agency Personnel will evaluate.

	14. 
	
	
	Q. What State agencies are anticipated to participate in the program?
A.  There is no guarantee of any agency participating.  The interested agencies at this time are Department of Corrections, State Fund Workers Comp, and DLI Unemployment Insurance.  However, there is no guarantee these agencies will participate when the contract is executed.  If the program does not work for their needs, they are not required to participate.

	15. 
	7
	1.9.1
	Q. Can you please clarify that restating “the section/subsection number and the text immediately prior to your written response” means only providing the section/subsection number and the title of that section?  Or are we required to include the entire text of the section before our written statement?
A. Restate the entire text.

	16. 
	7
	1.9.1
	Q. Please confirm that the instructions regarding “restate the section/subsection number and the text immediately prior to your written response” refers to Sections 3 and 4, and Sections 2, 5, and 6.
A. If the section does not require a response, the statement “understands and will comply” will suffice.

	17. 
	23
	4.2.3
	Q. Would the State permit financial statements to be included on a CD rather than as hard copies?

A. Yes.  As long as the CD is referenced in the appropriate section of the response and each response has its own CD attached.  Keep in mind that any claims for confidential information still need to be separated and the procedure in Section 2.3.2 followed.

	18. 
	24
	Cost Proposal
	Q. In order to help accurately complete the pricing sheet, will the State provide forecasted or anticipated volumes for the three participating agencies?
A. Total volumes are listed in #5.  We are unable to forecast adoption rate.

	19. 
	5,31
	1.4 and Appendix B, 6
	Q. Will the State negotiate providing implementation fees if they decide to use another vendor?

A. State will not negotiate implementation fees.

	20. 
	31
	Appendix B, 8
	Q. Will the State clarify whether “Subcontractor” for the purposes of the solicitation refers only to those subcontractors retained to fulfill tasks/perform work specific to this Contract?  If a bidder has thousands of vendors, performing a myriad of functions across several clients, it is not feasible to allow a single client to exercise control over subcontractors retained to perform such work.

A. Only Subcontractors specific to this contract.

	21. 
	31
	Appendix B, 9
	Q. Will the State negotiate limitations on the Contractor and State’s cumulative liability to each other?

A. No
Q. Will the State agree that neither the State nor the Contractor will be liable to each other for special, indirect, incidental, consequential (including lost profits or revenues), exemplary, or punitive damages?

A.  No

	22. 
	32
	Appendix B, 10.5
	Q. Will the State negotiate this requirement further?  If a bidder serves multiple clients, we cannot agree to subject our deductibles/self-insured retentions to a single Client’s approval.  Moreover, deductibles are covered by collateral posted with our insurers.

A. Yes we can negotiate further if needed.

	23. 
	32
	Appendix B, 10.6
	Q. Will the State allow the Contractor to provide Certificates of Insurance, and other documentation, rather than complete copies of insurance policies?  The bidder could agree to provide documentation to the State to verify its continued compliance with the State’s insurance requirements, but typically cannot disclose deductibles and self-insured retentions, or provide entire complete copies of its insurance policies.

A. State accepts COI documentation with the endorsement for additional insured to execute a contract.  The State reserves the right to require complete copies of policies if needed.

	24. 
	13
	3.4
	Q. Regarding the online and batch enrollment functions:

a) Does the State intend to implement an online enrollment function for their program administrators, or an online enrollment function directly for program recipients/cardholders?
A. Just program administrators.
b) The State asks for both functions "in a format prescribed by each agency or program." Can the State further describe or elaborate on exactly what formats are preferred? 
A. Preferred format will most likely be a night time batch from the State accounting system.
     c)    Can we get those formats up front to analyze and determine level of effort to accommodate?
    A.   See Attachment A Interface Load Procedure.

	25. 
	13
	3.4
	In regards to batch file enrollment:

a)
The State asks that the "contractor in batch shall receive enrollment file from state, edit the data and send an acknowledgement to State." Can the State elaborate on exactly what data is required to be edited by the Contractor? 
A. There will be no editing required by contractor.
b)
Also can the State explain why the Contractor would be vest suited to edit that data?

A. State will do any editing before batch is sent to contractor.

	26. 
	17
	3.15
	For the cardholder customer service portion of the RFP:

a)
The State “desires standard IVR modified for each program." Can the State elaborate on the types of modifications that would need to be included?
A. The verification questions may vary by agency.

	27. 
	20
	3.27
	For consistency, would the State entertain removing the following language from this question: “The addition of these cardholders, and any increased deposits, shall be included in any computations made to determine the aggregate number of cardholders or deposited funds that may, under the terms of the contracts arising out of this RFP, have the effect of reducing the costs, or enhancing the level of benefits or services, provided by the Contractor to cardholders and the State.”

The bidder thinks that State could benefit by remaining consistent with other requirements throughout the RFP. 

For instance, this section suggests that since other programs may or may not join the contract, the bidder should factor those additional programs’ cardholders and deposits in any “computations made to determine the aggregate number of cardholders or deposited funds that may, under the terms of the contracts arising out of this RFP, have the effect of reducing the costs, or enhancing the level of benefits or services, provided by the Contractor to cardholders and the State.” 

However, at the same time in Section 1.2, the State makes it clear that “the State Procurement Bureau makes no guarantee of any public procurement unit [additional agency] participation in this contract.” 

a)
If there is no guarantee of additional agency participation, why are bidders required to assume these additional card volumes and loads into our pricing evaluation for the State’s programs that are a part of this RFP? It doesn’t seem to follow some of the other statements made in the RFP.

Additionally, at the beginning of Section 3, the State acknowledges that each additional program will be scoped, priced and contracted individually: “Negotiations for specific service options and pricing shall take place on an individual basis between the vendor and a State agency prior to that agency’s official participation in the contract.  The agency and the vendor shall create and sign a service and pricing agreement specific to that agency prior to services being rendered by the vendor for that agency. The completion of this agreement shall signify that agency’s official participation in the contract.” 

b)
If each additional program is priced separately, why must bidders apply those programs volumes and loads into the Unemployment Insurance pricing computation? 

We feel that if the State removes the language indicated above, these inconsistencies could be avoided and bidders can focus on providing the best possible solution and pricing for the Unemployment Insurance program.
A. State agrees to remove the following portion of Section 3.27. “The addition of these cardholders, and any increased deposits, shall be included in any computations made to determine the aggregate number of cardholders or deposited funds that may, under the terms of the contracts arising out of this RFP, have the effect of reducing the costs, or enhancing the level of benefits or services, provided by the Contractor to cardholders and the State.”

	28. 
	24
	5.3
	In regards to the prepaid program being at NO COST to the State:

a)
The State acknowledges that “the costs to the State to originate ACH credits to cardholder accounts via their Originating Depository Financial Institution are considered a cost of the common services.” Can bidders assume that if we are NOT the ODFI, that our program must still absorb the costs of that function? 
A.  No. 
b)
If so, can the State please explain how any bidder who is NOT the ODFI will understand the exact nature of those ongoing costs via the State? 
A. N/A
c)
Can the State describe the process used to communicate this information to the bidder?

A. N/A

	29. 
	24
	5.4
	In order to provide the detail required for accurate financial modeling and pricing of this program, can the State please provide the following information:

a)
For the Unemployment Insurance  Program:

i.
Current Monthly Payments via Check (Last 12 months) See #5
ii.
Average Payment per Check  See #5
iii.
Check Payment Frequency (weekly, bi-weekly, etc.) See #5
iv.
Maximum number of eligible weeks to receive a payment? 26
v.
How often are claimants paid? Once per Week? See #5
vi.
Is there a waiting period from eligibility before a payment is made?  1 week for first week of claim.
vii.
How many Claimants are on Check versus Direct Deposit? See Question #5
b)
For the potential Worker’s Compensation program:

viii.
Current Monthly Payments via Check and Direct Deposit (Last 12 months) See Question #5
ix.
Average Payment per Check/Direct Deposit -See #5
x.
Check/Prepaid Card Payment Frequency (weekly, bi-weekly, etc.) See #5
xi.
How many Claimants receive Short Term & Long Term payouts?
xii.
Do you have stats for the number of lump sum payments and how much they are? No
c)
For the potential DOC program:

xiii.
Current Monthly Payments via Check/Direct Deposit (Last 12 months)See #5
xiv.
Are payments issued today by Check only? No. DOC issues payments through both check and EFT for restitution and only check for inmate accounts.
xv.
Average Payment per Check See #5. $100
xvi.
Check/Prepaid Card Payment Frequency (weekly, bi-weekly, etc.) Restitution payments occur at the end of each business day.  Gate Pay payments to inmates occur upon release, there is an average of 54 releases each month occurring at different dates throughout each month.
xvii.
Will the cards need to be reloadable? Yes

	30. 
	13
	3.3
	Regarding the PIN change protocol, can the State elaborate on their preferred method of cardholder authentication?
A. PIN Change Protocol would most likely be specific to the agency.

	31. 
	13
	3.4
	Regarding the Contractor editing the enrollment files, can the State clarify what is meant by “edit?” Since the Contractor will have no involvement with the recipient prior to enrollment, we feel that there would be little “editing” any bidder would be knowledgeable enough to handle.

A. State will conduct any editing before batch is sent.

	32. 
	14
	3.5
	In regards to Section 3.5, the State asks that “to accommodate multiple agencies within State, loads will be provided in a separate ACH Batch for each agency.  The contents of the COMPANY ENTRY DESCRIPTION field and/or the COMPANY IDENTIFICATION FIELD within the ACH Batch Header Record will be used to differentiate the agencies.” Could the State please clarify if this also extends to the loads for the cardholder and the description for the online/paper statement?
A. Some agencies may require this and some may not depending on the agency needs.

	33. 
	19
	3.22
	Q. “c)  MDOC requires the ability to reconcile department vendor payment with the dollar amounts loaded on inmate cards.  The monthly reconciliation report must include the number of cards issued, the inmate ID of each card recipient, the amount transferred to each card and the monthly payment amount from MDOC.” Q: What is the State’s expectation for this process?
A. The department wants to ensure inmates are actually receiving the amounts recorded on their inmate accounts plus gate pay.

	34. 
	21
	3.32
	Q. Regarding the second bullet – “Describe any extra accounting programs required.” Q: Can the State please elaborate on what it means by ‘accounting programs?’
A. This applies to the offeror’s accounting programs, not the State’s.

	35. 
	15
	3.10
	Q. Can the State clarify what they mean by “cancelled?”
A. The card and account are closed and cannot be reopened or re-used unless specifically requested by agency in the event of fraud access or accidental over-payment.

	36. 
	21
	3.32
	Q. Regarding the last bullet, can the State clarify the definition of “pre-dispute?”
A. No binding arbitration accepted.  Remove the word “pre-disputed”.
Q. Also can the State clarify if the non-inclusion of “pre-dispute binding arbitration clauses” refers to the agreement between the State and the Contractor, or between the Contractor and the cardholder?
A. RFP would result in an agreement between the contractor and State.  Evert card issued to the customers would include a cardholder agreement establishing the relationship between contractor and cardholder.

	37. 
	19
	3.16
	Q. Informs State of all accounts with accrued inactivity fees through a report under paragraph 3.16 – Q: what is the intent of the state to collect this information?

A. State needs to know so the cardholder can be contacted or for reporting purposes.

	38. 
	17
	3.11
	a)
Include samples of replacement card reports (hardcopy and on-line) the agency will receive and identify the timeline for receipt. 

Q: can the state elaborate on the need for a report of cards replaced?

A. Please remove this requirement from the RFP.


	39. 
	21
	3.22
	c)  MDOC requires the ability to reconcile department vendor payment with the dollar amounts loaded on inmate cards.  The monthly reconciliation report must include the number of cards issued, the inmate ID of each card recipient, the amount transferred to each card and the monthly payment amount from MDOC.

Q: is the state requiring this of the prepaid provider or the ODFI from the funding side? Is this to all be included in one report or separate reports?
A. ODFI/one report, aggregated by agency.

	40. 
	21
	3.22
	a) Individual reconciliation reports containing list of payment files received including number of payments and dollar amount.

Q: different reports can be available depending upon the type of transmission for funding (batc vs. ACH) is the state open to discussion of building any necessary “custom” reports during the implementation process for the agencies?
A. Yes

	41. 
	33
	Appendix B- Contract
	14.
REGISTRATION WITH THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Q. This section states that any business intending to transact business in Montana must register with the Secretary of State.  Our legal counsel has advised us that under Montana law, banks are prohibited from registering with the Secretary of State.  Can this provision be waived?

A. Yes.  Banks must be registered with the State of Montana Banking and Finance department but not the Secretary of State’s Office.

	42. 
	12
	3
	Q. In order to provide comprehensive pricing, can the State please provide the following Fiscal Year 2014 (or calendar year 2013) statistics for each specific participating State agencies mentioned - Department of Corrections, Department of Labor and Industry and Montana State Fund:

•
Total # check payments issued- See Question #5
•
Total dollar amount associated- See #5
•
Estimated distinct payee count – number of individuals receiving payment by check

•
Frequency of pay (one-time, weekly, monthly, etc.) See #5
For Department of Labor and Industry specifically, are claims paid weekly and what is the current average duration of weeks a claimant is receiving benefits?  See #5 and current duration is 26 weeks.
A. DOC  

· 21,000 annually

· $1,762,240 annually

· 1290 per month

Restitution payments occur at the end of each business day.  Gate Pay payments to inmates occur upon release, there is an average of 54 releases each month occurring at different dates throughout each month.

	43. 
	14
	3.5
	Q. Certain prepaid functionality as requested by the State will require funds to be deposited in a funding account. Is the State willing and able to deposit funds in a demand deposit account with a bank located outside of Montana?

A.  At this time the State is not willing to accept deposit accounts with a bank located outside of Montana.

	44. 
	74
	7.2 Access to Retention of Records, Retention Period
	Q. 7.2       Retention Period  

Contractor shall create and retain all records supporting the Pre-Paid Debit Cards Services for a period of eight years after either the completion date of this contract or termination of the contract.  

Bank of America would like to clarify that our records are generally maintained for a rolling period of seven (7) years from the date of a transaction. Therefore, we are unable to agree to maintain records based upon the date of termination, or final payment, in regard to a particular client contract or agreement.

A. Ok.

	45. 
	5
	1.2
	Q. In Section 3 of the RFP document, in regards to additional public procurement units using the program, the state acknowledges that: 

“Negotiations for specific service options and pricing shall take place on an individual basis between the vendor and a State agency prior to that agency’s official participation in the contract.  The agency and the vendor shall create and sign a service and pricing agreement specific to that agency prior to services being rendered by the vendor for that agency. The completion of this agreement shall signify that agency’s official participation in the contract.” 

Due to this acknowledgement, U.S. Bank respectfully requests the following language be changed to 1.2 Cooperative Purchasing to ensure consistency throughout the RFP in regards to prepaid programs being individually scoped, priced and contractually agreed to:

“Under Montana law, public procurement units, as defined in 8-4-401, MCA, have the option of cooperatively purchasing with the State of Montana.  Public procurement units are defined as local or state public procurement units of this or any other state, including an agency of the United States, or a tribal procurement unit. Unless the bidder/offeror objects, in writing, to the State Procurement Bureau prior to the award of this contract, negotiations for specific service options and pricing shall take place on an individual basis between the vendor and a State agency prior to that agency’s official participation in the contract. The agency and the vendor shall create and sign a service and pricing agreement specific to that agency prior to services being rendered by the vendor for that agency. The completion of this agreement shall signify that agency’s official participation in the contract.  However, the State Procurement Bureau makes no guarantee of any public procurement unit participation in this contract.”
A. State may negotiate this term during the contract refinement process.  At this time the State is not opposed to the addition but may not fully understand the reason for the request.

	46. 
	5
	1.4
	Q. Prepaid Unemployment Insurance programs require an exorbitant amount of start-up costs and resources to launch and implement – costs U.S. Bank agrees to absorb in lieu of providing a fully COST FREE program to the State as requested. Certainly the State understands that under this arrangement, U.S. Bank would shoulder ALL the risk and cost at the expense of the State’s ability to simply give a portion of this business to another provider. For this reason, we request that 1.4 Non-Exclusive Contract incorporate the following changes and additions: 

“1.4 PARTIALLY EXCLUSIVE CONTRACT
The intent of this contract is to provide state agencies with an expedited means of procuring supplies and/or services. This contract is for the convenience of state agencies and is considered by the State Procurement Bureau to be a "partially exclusive" use contract specifically for the agencies listed in this RFP. All agency program payments must be made through this contractual arrangement with the Contractor. Additional agencies outside the scope of this RFP may obtain this product/service from the Contractor or sources other than the contract holder(s) as long as they comply with Title 18, MCA, and their delegation agreement. Any agency under this contract that wishes to utilize an offerer other than the Contractor must receive approval from both the State and the Contractor. The State Procurement Bureau does not guarantee any usage.”
A.  State will not accept this change.

	47. 
	7
	1.8.2
	Q. We understand the State is trying to be all-inclusive by incorporating the entire RFP and any addenda, the offeror's RFP response, including any amendments, a best and final offer (if any), and any clarification question responses in the contract. However, inclusion of all this information in the contract could be assuming that everything in the response will remain exactly as is for the duration of the contract, when in reality, prepaid programs can be dramatically affected by any number of factors, including state and federal regulations, technology shifts etc. 

That being said, the inclusion of all of this material could lead to an overwhelming burden of contract changes, amendments and addenda that would not only require an abundance of attention by the bank, but by the State as well. Additionally, since our RFP response represents a “snapshot” per say of our prepaid program at the time of RFP submission, U.S. Bank would like to be assured that we would not be in breach of contract for some of these changes. An example being ATM locations. Due to the nature of the ATM business, locations change weekly, if not daily. The ATM totals reflected at the time of RFP submission may be different even a week or two after submission. Due to this fluidity found in all prepaid programs, U.S. Bank would like to add the following language to Section 1.8.2:

“Since all portions of the RFP and U.S. Bank’s response are to be included as part of the ongoing contract, and our RFP response represents a snapshot of our prepaid program functionality as of the specific time of RFP submittal, U.S. Bank and the State both understand and acknowledge that changes to the programs may/will occur over the course of the contract due to forces within or beyond the control of the parties, including, but not limited to: state or federal regulation changes, changes in industry, personnel changes, technological changes, etc. Such changes do not constitute a breach of contract, nor necessitate contract amendment(s).”
A. In the event laws or regulations change affecting the contractors services, the State may negotiate those changes into the contract.

	48. 
	8
	1.10.2
	Q. Since all the RFP materials submitted during the RFP process will become part of the eventual contract, and that much of this RFP content originates from the Contractor, we suggest the following change to the language of this term:

“The State and the Contractor shall jointly-own all materials submitted in response to this RFP.”
A. State will not agree

	49. 
	10 & 11
	2.4.9
	Q. While we appreciate and respect the State’s due diligence in developing the Terms & Conditions and a Contract for this bid, we feel that as a prepaid industry market leader U.S. Bank can assist the State in addressing some of the finer industry-specific points that may or may not have been addressed in your RFP materials. To those ends, we believe it to be vitally important in all contractual business that both parties collaborate in mutual negotiations to ensure contractual terms meet current industry and market standards. As such, we request the following change in language:

“Upon receipt of all required materials, a contract (Appendix B) incorporating the Standard Terms and Conditions (Appendix A), as well as the highest scoring offeror's proposal, will be provided to the highest scoring offeror for redline review and negotiations. The highest scoring offeror will review the materials and redline any terms/changes requiring negotiation. Offeror will return materials to the State and formal contract negotiations will occur. If formal contract terms cannot be mutually negotiated, the State may move to the next highest scoring offeror, or cancel the RFP.  Work under the contract may begin when the contract is signed by all parties.”
A. State may allow non-material changes to the contract that dies not significantly increase the liability of the State and does not conflict with Montana statute during the contract refinement process.

	50. 
	30
	App. B, 3.1
	Q. We understand the State is trying to be all-inclusive by incorporating the entire RFP and any addenda, the offeror's RFP response, including any amendments, a best and final offer (if any), and any clarification question responses in the contract. However, inclusion of all this information in the contract could be assuming that everything in the response will remain exactly as is for the duration of the contract, when in reality, prepaid programs can be dramatically affected by any number of factors, including state and federal regulations, technology shifts etc. 

That being said, the inclusion of all of this material could lead to an overwhelming burden of contract changes, amendments and addenda that would not only require an abundance of attention by the bank, but by the State as well. Additionally, since our RFP response represents a “snapshot” per say of our prepaid program at the time of RFP submission, U.S. Bank would like to be assured that we would not be in breach of contract for some of these changes. An example being ATM locations. Due to the nature of the ATM business, locations change weekly, if not daily. The ATM totals reflected at the time of RFP submission may be different even a week or two after submission. Due to this fluidity found in all prepaid programs, U.S. Bank would like to add the following language to Section 3.1:

“Since all portions of the RFP and U.S. Bank’s response are to be included as part of the ongoing contract, and our RFP response represents a snapshot of our prepaid program functionality as of the specific time of RFP submittal, U.S. Bank and the State both understand and acknowledge that changes to the programs may/will occur over the course of the contract due to forces within or beyond the control of the parties, including, but not limited to: state or federal regulation changes, changes in industry, personnel changes, technological changes, etc. Such changes do not constitute a breach of contract, nor necessitate contract amendment(s).”
A. State may allow non-material changes to the contract that dies not significantly increase the liability of the State and does not conflict with Montana statute during the contract refinement process.

	51. 
	31
	App. B, 5
	Q. In Section 3, in regards to additional public procurement units using the program, the state acknowledges that: 

“Negotiations for specific service options and pricing shall take place on an individual basis between the vendor and a State agency prior to that agency’s official participation in the contract.  The agency and the vendor shall create and sign a service and pricing agreement specific to that agency prior to services being rendered by the vendor for that agency. The completion of this agreement shall signify that agency’s official participation in the contract.” 

Due to this acknowledgement, U.S. Bank respectfully requests the following language change to ensure consistency throughout the RFP in regards to prepaid programs being individually scoped, priced and contractually agreed to:

“Under Montana law, public procurement units, as defined in 8-4-401, MCA, have the option of cooperatively purchasing with the State of Montana.  Public procurement units are defined as local or state public procurement units of this or any other state, including an agency of the United States, or a tribal procurement unit. Unless the bidder/offeror objects, in writing, to the State Procurement Bureau prior to the award of this contract, negotiations for specific service options and pricing shall take place on an individual basis between the vendor and a State agency prior to that agency’s official participation in the contract. The agency and the vendor shall create and sign a service and pricing agreement specific to that agency prior to services being rendered by the vendor for that agency. The completion of this agreement shall signify that agency’s official participation in the contract.  However, the State Procurement Bureau makes no guarantee of any public procurement unit participation in this contract.”
A. See answer to #45

	52. 
	24
	App. B,. 5.1
	Q. We understand the State wants prices to remain fixed throughout the duration of the contract. However, fixed prices in a contract would assume that all aspects of the program will remain exactly as is for the duration of the contract, when in reality, prepaid programs can be dramatically affected by any number of external factors, including state and federal regulations, technology shifts etc. 

That being said, a fixed price impacted by a federal regulation that requires us to add a process or incur added costs, could ultimately destroy the operation viability of the program. For example, what if bulk postal rates skyrocket above the assumptions we made in our financial modeling and we had to assume a much greater cost and operating expense? A change like that could definitely affect the operation viability of the program. In those regards, we pledge that we’ll keep the prices where we offer them, however we need a certain amount of flexibility in times of change to assure full operation viability. Therefore, we’d like the language in 5.1 to be changed to reflect:

“Unless identified otherwise, prices quoted must apply for the duration of the base contract period and each of the succeeding renewal terms. However, U.S. Bank and the State both understand and acknowledge that changes to the programs, including pricing, may/will occur over the course of the contract due to forces within or beyond the control of the parties, including, but not limited to: state or federal regulation changes, changes in industry, personnel changes, technological changes, etc. Such changes do not constitute a breach of contract, nor necessitate contract amendment(s).
A. See answer to #47

	53. 
	31
	App. B,. 6
	Q. Prepaid programs require an exorbitant amount of start-up costs and resources to launch and implement – costs U.S. Bank agrees to absorb in lieu of providing a fully COST FREE program to the State as requested. Certainly the State understands that under this arrangement, U.S. Bank would shoulder ALL the risk and cost at the expense of the State’s ability to simply give a portion of this business to another provider. For this reason, we request that 1.4 Non-Exclusive Contract incorporate the following changes and additions: 

“1.4 PARTIALLY EXCLUSIVE CONTRACT
The intent of this contract is to provide state agencies with an expedited means of procuring supplies and/or services. This contract is for the convenience of state agencies and is considered by the State Procurement Bureau to be a "partially exclusive" use contract specifically for the agencies listed in this RFP. All agency program payments must be made through this contractual arrangement with the Contractor. Additional agencies outside the scope of this RFP may obtain this product/service from the Contractor or sources other than the contract holder(s) as long as they comply with Title 18, MCA, and their delegation agreement. Any agency under this contract that wishes to utilize an offerer other than the Contractor must receive approval from both the State and the Contractor. The State Procurement Bureau does not guarantee any usage.”

A. State will not agree.

	54. 
	31
	App. B, 7.1
	Q. In Section 7.1, in regards to records access. We recommend a change in language to ensure both the State and the bidder are abiding by privacy laws: 

“Contractor shall provide the State, Legislative Auditor, or their authorized agents access to any records necessary to determine contract compliance, as long as this action is in full accordance with all state and federal data privacy laws. The State may terminate this contract under section 15, without incurring liability, for the Contractor’s refusal to allow access as required by this section.  (18-1-118, MCA.).”

A. State cannot agree.

	55. 
	31
	App. B. 8
	Q. In terms of selecting appropriate contractors to perform functions, U.S. Bank believes we have the requisite knowledge, experience and systems expertise to know which subcontractor is best suited for a partnership. Just like we trust the State has the requisite knowledge and expertise to select the best contracting partner for the State, we believe the State should also honor our ability to select our partners. Any contractor decision affected by the State could adversely affect not only the costs of the program, but the quality as well. We recommend a change in language to ensure our ability to utilize worthy subcontractors as necessary, while still fully communicating that change to the State: 

“Contractor may not assign, transfer, or subcontract any portion of this contract without first communicating to the State in writing a notification of a subcontractor change.  (18-4-141, MCA.)  Contractor is responsible to the State for the acts and omissions of all subcontractors or agents and of persons directly or indirectly employed by such subcontractors, and for the acts and omissions of persons employed directly by Contractor. No contractual relationships exist between any subcontractor and the State under this contract.
A. State will not agree, however, State will not unreasonably withhold consent to assign, transfer or subcontract.

	56. 
	31
	App. B, 9
	Q. In order to better clarify the State’s involvement in the indemnification process, we suggest changing the following language:

“Contractor agrees to protect, defend, and save the State, its elected and appointed officials, agents, and employees, while acting within the scope of their duties as such, harmless from and against all claims, demands, causes of action of any kind or character, including the cost of defense thereof, arising in favor of Contractor's employees or third parties on account of bodily or personal injuries, death, or damage to property arising out of services performed or omissions of services or in any way resulting from the acts or omissions of Contractor and/or its agents, employees, representatives, assigns, subcontractors, except to the extent attributable to the negligence or Willful misconduct of the State, under this contract.”

A. State will accept with the addition of “willful” misconduct of the State.

	57. 
	33 & 34
	App. B, 15.2
	Q. Prepaid programs require an exorbitant amount of start-up costs and resources to launch and implement – costs U.S. Bank agrees to absorb in lieu of providing a fully COST FREE program to the State as requested. Certainly the State understands that under this arrangement, U.S. Bank would shoulder ALL the risk and cost at the expense of the State’s ability to terminate for convenience. For this reason, we request that Section 15.2 Termination for Convenience be struck from the document: 

“15.2 Termination for Convenience.  The State may, by written notice to Contractor, terminate this contract without cause and without incurring liability to Contractor.  The State shall give notice of termination to Contractor at least 30 days before the effective date of termination.  The State shall pay Contractor only that amount, or prorated portion thereof, owed to Contractor up to the date the State's termination takes effect.  This is Contractor's sole remedy.  The State shall not be liable to Contractor for any other payments or damages arising from termination under this section, including but not limited to general, special, or consequential damages such as lost profits or revenues.”
A. State will agree.

	58. 
	34
	App. B, 16.1
	Q. Since the “material breach” language in 16.2 lacks specific material causes or explanations for breach, we feel the language for 16.1 should be struck and language that mirrors 16.2 be added:

“The Contractor’s failure to perform any material terms or conditions of this contract constitutes an event of breach.”
A. State may negotiate during contract refinement.

	59. 
	34
	App. B, 16.3
	Q. Since Section 15.2 is a Termination for Convenience clause for the State that we would prefer be struck from the terms, and it appears that the reference should actually refer to Section 15.3, we suggest the following language change: 

“Upon the State’s material breach, Contractor may:

· terminate this contract under Section 15.3 and pursue any of its remedies under this contract, at law, or in equity; or

treat this contract as materially breached and, except as the remedy is limited in this contract, pursue any of its remedies under this contract, at law, or in equity.”
A. State accepts this change.
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